UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

2-27-2014

Cadue v. State Appellant's Brief Dckt. 41001

NATURE OF THE CASE

Petitioner, Perry W. Cadue, ("Cadue") filed a Second Post-Conviction Petition on March 14,2013. Cadue was previously convicted of Aggravated battery, by a jury in Twin Falls, Case CR-2008-11107 and sentenced thereon on November 24. 2009. That Conviction and Sentence was affirmed on Appeal. Cadue filed his first post conviction petition in February 2012. The District Court dismissed that petition on the States, Motion for Summary Disposition on July 23,2012. That case was Appealed and Affirmed with 2014 unpublished opinion No.352, filed: February 6,2014. In Cadue's, Second Petition for Post-Conviction Relief, he raises (19) claims all involving claimed misconduct of his trial counsel, his appellate counsel and ineffective assistance of his previous post-conviction. The District Court files a Order Denying Appointment of Counsel and Notice of Intent to Dismiss Post-Conviction Petition. Cadue files Motion to Reconsider. The District Court submits final Judgment Dated April 12,2013.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

The facts, Cadue disputes and procedure are described in the Second Petition for Post-Conviction Relief and Memorandum in Support. Filed March 14,2013. With exhibit's (a)through(k).

APPELLANT'S BRIEF-1

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1.) DID THE DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY DECIDE IN DENYING, CADUE APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL.

2.) DID THE DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY DECIDE IN DISMISSING CADUE'S SECOND PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION RELIEF.

ARGUMENT

1.) DID DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY DECIDE IN DENYING, CADUE APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL.

Cadue files a second petition for post-conviction relief with the district court, because of the ineffectiveness of his two (2) court appointed attorneys for his first petition for post-conviction relief. And that being the first attorney was a conflict because counselor Tim Williams, was named in the first petition for post-conviction relief. But before he was conflicted off he allowed the State too file summary dismissal, statement of facts brief in support of motion for summary disposition of petition for post-conviction relief and request for judicial notice. Which was never objected to any of these motions. Cadues does not have the education to defend himself or the books and case law too support a argument. Cadue did presented claims with evidence showing ineffective assistance of his court appointed attorneys and other documents supporting his claims. And under. Bounds V. Smith, 430 U.S. 817,824,828 (1977) prisoners have fundamental constitutional right to adequate, effective and meaningful access to courts to challenge violations of constitutional rights. And in Lewis v. Casey, 518 U.S. 343 (1996) its states counsel will be provided. If it meets the two prong test 1.) is if the claims are not frivolous, 2.) whether the petition alleges facts showing the possibility of a valid claim that would require further investigation on the defendant's behalf. Cadue meets both prongs. Therefore the District Court was incorrect in denying appointment of counsel to Cadue.

ARGUMENT

2.) DID THE DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY DECIDE IN DISMISSING, CADUE'S SECOND PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION RELIEF.

Indeed, when a petitioner files a second successive petition for post conviction relief the burden is on the Court to determine whether the petitioner lacks sufficient reason for

APPELLANT'S BRIEF-3

failing to raise the issues of the second petition in the previous petition. This the Court must do before it can dismiss the petition as successive.

The Idaho Supreme Court in the case of <u>Palmer vs. McDermitt</u>, 102 Idaho 591,635,P2d.955 (Idaho 1981), Justice McFadden, stated:

However, the language of I.C.§ 19-4908 does not prohibit successive petitions for post conviction relief in every case, but rather, only prohibits successive petitions in those cases where the petitioner "knowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently" waived the grounds for which he now seeks relief, or offers no "sufficient reason" for the omission of those grounds in his "original, supplemental or amended petition." Thus, it is necessary that the trial court find the failure to include newly asserted grounds for relief in the prior post conviction relief proceeding was without sufficient reason before the application may be summarily dismissed on the ground of waiver. Other jurisdictions have also arrived at the same interpretation with respect to similar statutory provisions relating to successive petitions for post conviction relief and the doctrine of waiver. See, e.g., People vs. Hubbard, 184 Colo 243, 519 P2d 945 (1974); Rogers vs. Warden, Nevada State Prison, 86 Nev 359, 468 P2d 993 (1970)...

102 Idaho at 593-4, 635 P2d at 957-8

The manner and amount of showing required under Idaho Code § 19-4908 upon the filing of a Second Petition for Post Conviction Relief is not adequately defined. The showing changes from Court to Court and District to District. However, the only sure manner of making a sufficient showing is to be able to meet the "cause and prejudice" standard set forth below. However, the standard set forth here should be understood under **Palmer** as being a lesser standard than the "cause and prejudice" standard.

The standard under Idaho Code § 19-4908 is "sufficient reason" which is ambiguous and vague.

Cause then includes such factors as ineffective assistance of counsel, interference by state officials, a new rule of law which applies retroactively, etc. Cause is something outside of the control of the petitioner without which the state procedural rule would have been obeyed.

To show prejudice the petitioner must demonstrate that but for the procedural default it is probable that the outcome of the cause would have been different.

The United States Supreme Court in the case of <u>Murray vs.</u> <u>Carrier</u>, 477 U.S. 478, 106 SCt 2639, 91 LEd2d 397 (1986), Justice O'Connor stated: The habeas petitioner must show not merely that the errors at trial created a possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and substantial disadvantage, infecting his entire trial with error of constitutional dimensions.... Such a showing of pervasive actual prejudice can hardly be thought to constitute anything other than a showing that the prisoner was denied "fundamental fairness" at trial.

477 U.S.at 494, 106 SCt at 2648

Cadue, does meet the "Cause and Prejudice Standard". Cadue files his first Petition for Post Conviction Relief, stating several claims, and has more claims, but waits until he appointed counsel too help him prefect and amend his Petition.

Cadue knows that he, lacks the legal knowledge in the law, and upon other inmates assistance Cadue, gets his Petition filed.

Then Cadue, relied on <u>Bounds v. Smith</u>, 403 U.S. 817,824,828(1977) prisoners have a fundamental constitutional right to adequate, effective and meaningful access to courts to challenge violations of constitutional rights, also see: <u>Lewis v. Casey</u>, 518 U.S.343(1996). So an inmate relies on his counsel, once he has filed his petition, by amending and perfecting his pleadings in the petition. and in Cadue's first petition for post conviction relief, counsel was appointed. and counsel was Tim Williams, but there is a conflict. Mr. Williams, was named in the Petition has ineffective assistance, that is, when Mr. Williams, was appointed to represent Cadue, on his Motion for New Trial. After three (3) months of trying to make contact with Mr. Williams by letter and phone. Cadue final gets the District Court to intervene, telling the Court of the problem. The Court appoints new counsel Mark J. Guerry, the District Court also expedites the proceedings.

So what has happened the first ninety (90) days that the case was in Tim Williams, hands was just setting idle. But the State had filed a Motion for Summary Dismissal, Statements of Facts, Brief in Support of Motion for Summary Disposition of Petition for Post Conviction Relief, and Request for Judicial Notice. No response or objection by Tim Williams, for Cadue, on any of the States Motions... So now attorney Mark Guerry, gets appointed to represent Cadue. The State, has full advantage and the District Court allows it. Mark Guerry, gets a continuance but only for thirty (30) days. Now he has got to perform a miracle. And that would be comply with the District Courts pretrial procedural order pursuant to Idaho Rule Of Criminal Procedure 16-Felony case only, entertain the Discovery, doing interrogators, admissions, depositions, making affidavits in form of there testimony, gather documents and etc., file subpoena's. And then analysis Cadue's claims perfect the Petition, amend it and then present valid argument... But counsel never amends the Petition. He does file a Memorandum of Facts and Law, on July 20,2012. Three (3) days before the Court Scheduled Hearing for July 23,2012. The Court Rules state, that all motions and responses must be filed fourteenth (14) days before a Hearing.

Mr. Guerry, only talk with Cadue, one (1) time, before the hearing, and that is the only Attorney that ever talked with Cadue. And Counsel only talked with Cadue Thirty (30) minutes by phone, never talked about amending the petition or doing the discovery for Cadue. Tells Cadue he will talk to him at the Hearing, and that was all Mr. Guerry said. Counsel never asks for another continuances. Cadue, does meet the Palmer standard and the Cause and Prejudice standard. Cadue, wants this Honorable Court too know that every attorney appointed to Cadue, was ineffective. Please see: Martinez v. Ryan, 566 U.S. 1, Trevino v. Thaler, No.11-10189, the Court held that " a procedural default will not bar a federal habeas court from hearing a substantial claim of ineffective assistance at trial if the [States] initial-review collateral proceeding there was no counsel / or counsel in that proceeding was ineffective. The Judge, put the pre-trial order in, the first petition it is not like he did not have a say in the proceedings. But the real question is, counsel never protected Cadue's due process and that is ineffective assistance. There is relief to be had and Cadue, prays this Honorable Court will make things right. Cadue's counsel was ineffective and Cadue's second petition has standing on all his claims, and they never got heard or developed and for those reasons stated.

CONCLUSION

In consideration of the forgoing, Cadue, requests an Order from this Honorable Court to remand this Petition back to the District Court, based on violations of his rights to the effective assistance of counsel and due process of law, as guaranteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. And have a evidentiary hearing on these issues, with appointed counsel to represent Cadue's claims in a full and fair hearing.