## Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

3-27-2014

### Cadue v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 41001

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

#### Nature Of The Case

Perry Wayne Cadue appeals from the summary dismissal of his successive petition for post-conviction relief.

#### Statement Of The Facts And Course Of The Proceedings

In his underlying criminal case, Cadue was charged with, and a jury convicted him of, aggravated battery. <u>Cadue v. State</u>, Docket No. 40286, 2014 Unpublished Opinion No. 352, p.1 (Idaho App. Feb. 6, 2014). The court imposed a unified 15-year sentence with 10 years fixed and the Idaho Court of Appeals affirmed. <u>Id.</u>

Cadue filed a petition for post-conviction relief claiming his defense counsel provided ineffective assistance by failing to (1) "allow Cadue to testify at trial"; (2) "file a motion to compel the production of the victim's knife;" and (3) "file a motion to compel the production of a police report." <u>Cadue</u> at 4. The district court summarily dismissed Cadue's original petition and the Idaho Court of Appeals affirmed. <u>Cadue</u> at 5.

While the appeal in his first post-conviction case was pending, Cadue filed a successive post-conviction petition. (R., pp.10-18.) In his successive petition, Caude alleged the state "withheld favorable and conclusive evidence or information that would have aided [him] in this matter," several claims of ineffective assistance of counsel, and a conflict of interest claim. (R., pp.12-17.) Cadue also filed a memorandum in support of his successive petition and a request for counsel. (R., pp.386-395.)

The district court denied Cadue's request for counsel and entered a notice of intent to dismiss Cadue's successive petition. (R., pp.396-403.) Cadue responded to the court's notice, arguing, in part, that "it would simply be unjust" to dismiss his petition and claiming counsel who represented him on his original petition was ineffective. (R., pp.404-405.) The court subsequently entered judgment dismissing Cadue's successive petition. (R., p.412.) Cadue filed a timely notice of appeal. (R., pp.426-429.)

#### ISSUES

Cadue states the issues on appeal as (verbatim):

- 1.) DID THE DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY DECIDE IN DENYING, CADUE APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL.
- 2.) DID THE DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY DECIDE IN DISMISSING CADUE'S SECOND PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION RELIEF.

(Appellant's Brief, p.2 (capitalization original).)

The state rephrases the issue as:

- 1. Has Cadue failed to show error in the denial of his request for the appointment of counsel?
- 2. Has Cadue failed to establish the district court erred in dismissing his successive petition for post-conviction relief?

#### ARGUMENT

1.

#### Cadue Has Failed To Show Error In The Denial Of His Request For Counsel

#### A. Introduction

Cadue contends the district court erred in denying his request for counsel, asserting he believes he has shown his successive post-conviction claims "are not frivolous" and that his successive petition "alleges facts showing the possibility of a valid claim." (Appellant's Brief, p.3.) Review of the record and the applicable legal standards shows the district court correctly concluded Cadue was not entitled to the appointment of counsel to represent him on an improper successive petition.

#### B. Standard Of Review

A decision to grant or deny a request for counsel in post-conviction cases is reviewed for an abuse of discretion. <u>Murphy v. State</u>, 2014 WL 712695 \*3 (Idaho 2014), *petition for rehearing pending*.

## C. <u>Cadue Was Not Entitled To Counsel To Represent Him On His Successive</u> Petition

"A request for appointment of counsel in a post-conviction proceeding is governed by I.C. § 19-4904, which provides that in proceedings under the UPCPA, a court-appointed attorney 'may be made available' to an applicant who is unable to pay the costs of representation." Murphy at \*3 (quoting I.C. § 19-4904; citing Charboneau v. State, 140 Idaho 789, 792, 102 P.3d 1108, 1111 (2004)). "The standard for determining whether to appoint counsel for an indigent petitioner in a post-conviction proceeding is whether the petition alleges facts showing the

possibility of a valid claim." Murphy at \*3 (citing Workman v. State, 144 Idaho 518, 529, 164 P.3d 798, 809 (2007)). "In deciding whether the *pro se* petition raises the possibility of a valid claim, the trial court should consider whether the facts alleged are such that a reasonable person with adequate means would be willing to retain counsel to conduct a further investigation into the claims." Swader v. State, 143 Idaho 651, 654, 152 P.3d 12, 15 (2007). The appointment of counsel is not appropriate for the purpose of searching the record for potentially nonfrivolous claims; rather, the petition itself must allege the facts that raise the possibility of a valid claim before the appointment of counsel is warranted. Murphy at \*3 (citing Swader, 143 Idaho at 654, 152 P.3d at 15).

The district court cited the foregoing standards and denied Cadue's request for counsel because Cadue failed to show a sufficient reason for pursuing a successive petition as required by I.C. § 19-4908 and, as such, there was no possibly valid claim entitling Cadue to counsel. (R., pp.397-398.) Although Cadue believes otherwise (Appellant's Brief, p.3), the record supports the district court's conclusion. See Murphy at \*6 (finding no error in failing to appoint counsel to represent petitioner on an improper successive petition).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The reasons the district court was correct in finding Cadue could not overcome the successive petition bar are discussed in more detail in Section II, <u>infra</u>.

11.

#### Cadue Has Failed To Show Error In The Dismissal Of His Successive Post-Conviction Petition

#### A. Introduction

Cadue asserts the district court erred in dismissing his successive post-conviction petition because, he contends, "the burden is on the Court to determine whether the petitioner lacks sufficient reason for failing to raise the issues of the second petition in the previous petition" and, according to Cadue, he satisfied the standard for filing a successive petition because he thinks his previous post-conviction counsel was ineffective. (Appellant's Brief, pp.3-7.) Cadue's claim fails because his contention that his original post-conviction attorney was ineffective, which in itself lacks merit, does not constitute a sufficient reason for filing a successive petition.

#### B. Standard Of Review

On appeal from summary dismissal of a post-conviction petition, the appellate court reviews the record to determine if a genuine issue of material fact exists, which, if resolved in the applicant's favor, would entitle the applicant to the requested relief. Matthews v. State, 122 Idaho 801, 807, 839 P.2d 1215, 1221 (1992); Aeschliman v. State, 132 Idaho 397, 403, 973 P.2d 749, 755 (Ct. App. 1999). Appellate courts freely review whether a genuine issue of material fact exists. Edwards v. Conchemco, Inc., 111 Idaho 851, 852, 727 P.2d 1279, 1280 (Ct. App. 1986).

## C. The District Court Correctly Dismissed Cadue's Successive Petition Idaho Code § 19-4908 states:

All grounds for relief available to an applicant under this act must be raised in his original, supplemental or amended application. Any ground finally adjudicated or not so raised, or knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently waived in the proceeding that resulted in the conviction or sentence or in any other proceeding the applicant has taken to secure relief may not be the basis for a subsequent application, unless the court finds a ground for relief asserted which for sufficient reason was not asserted or was inadequately raised in the original, supplemental, or amended application.

Cadue contends dismissal of his successive petition was improper because, he argues, it was the district court's "burden" to determine whether there was a sufficient reason for filing the petition and, according to Cadue, the sufficient reason was the alleged ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel in relation to his original petition. (Appellant's Brief, pp.3-9.) Cadue's arguments lack merit.

First, to the extent Cadue believes the district court had a *sua sponte* obligation to ascertain whether there was a sufficient reason for filing the petition, he is incorrect. It is not the district court's burden to scour the record to ascertain whether there is a sufficient reason; rather, the burden for alleging a sufficient reason to overcome the procedural bar to successive petitions is on the petitioner. Hooper v. State, 127 Idaho 945, 948, 908 P.2d 1252, 1255 (Ct. App. 1995). Moreover, the court in this case did make a determination that Cadue failed to demonstrate a sufficient reason to allow him to file a successive petition. (R., pp.399-402.)

Second, Cadue's contention that he provided a sufficient reason by alleging ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel fails. In support of this claim,

Cadue relies on Palmer v. Dermitt, 102 Idaho 591, 6335 P.2d 955 (1981), in which the Court held "that an allegation of ineffective assistance of prior post-conviction counsel may provide sufficient reason under I.C. § 19-4908 to permit allegations of error at trial not previously raised or inadequately raised in the initial application to be raised in a subsequent post-conviction application." Murphy at \*5 (citing Palmer, 102 Idaho at 596, 635 P.2d at 960). The Court, however, recently overruled Palmer<sup>2</sup> and held that because there is "no statutory or constitutional right to effective assistance of post-conviction counsel," an allegation of ineffective post-conviction counsel "cannot demonstrate 'sufficient reason' for filing a successive petition." Murphy at \*6. Cadue's reliance on the United States Supreme Court's opinions in Martinez v. Ryan, 566 U.S. 1 (2012), and Trevino v. Thaler, 133 S.Ct. 1911 (2013), is also misplaced because Martinez itself reiterates the principle stated in Murphy, that there is not constitutional right to post-conviction counsel, and in any event, Martinez and Trevino only involve an exception to the procedural default rule that allows federal courts to consider claims in habeas that were not exhausted in state court.

Even without the Court's recent pronouncement in <u>Murphy</u>, Cadue could not meet his burden of showing a sufficient reason under <u>Palmer</u> because, as noted by the district court, Cadue's assertion in this regard was conclusory. (R., p.401.) Further, contrary to Cadue's argument, post-conviction counsel did not have the duty

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The state recognizes that <u>Murphy</u> was not issued when Cadue filed his successive petition and that when Cadue filed his successive petition, claiming ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel was a viable "sufficient reason" for filing a successive petition.

to amend the original petition to add claims Cadue never raised or to engage in discovery that was not authorized by the court. (See R., p.401.) Even if the ineffective assistance of post-conviction counsel were still a sufficient reason for filing a successive petition, simply claiming post-conviction counsel was ineffective, without more, is not enough. In order to avoid summary dismissal, Cadue was still required to allege a genuine issue of material fact to support his claim that postconviction counsel was ineffective, which in turn required alleging a genuine issue of material fact for each claim he believed post-conviction counsel should have raised. See Baldwin v. State, 145 Idaho 148, 153-154, 177 P.3d 362, 367-368 (2008). As noted by the district court, Cadue failed to do so in this case. (R., pp.401-402.) Cadue has failed to establish otherwise. Indeed, on appeal, Cadue fails to even address how he believes he met his burden of alleging a genuine issue of material fact in relation to any of the substantive claims he asserted in his successive petition. Having failed to present any argument on this point, Cadue has waived consideration of the merits of dismissal on this basis. See State v. Goodwin, 131 Idaho 364, 366, 956 P.2d 1311, 1313 (Ct. App. 1998).

Cadue has failed to show error in the dismissal of his successive postconviction petition.

#### CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests this Court affirm the district court's dismissal of Cadue's successive petition for post-conviction relief.